
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA - AMENDED 

MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

2. Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Month.

VII. PRESENTATIONS

1. Audit Presentation – Michael Jordan – Carr, Riggs, Ingram, LLC. Goldsboro NC.

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 – Annexation.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

X. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
 December 9, 2019.

2. Tax Release and Refund.

3. Budget Amendment: 2019-2020-4.

4. Audit Contract Amendment for fiscal year 2018 – 2019.



XI. NEW BUSINESS:

1. New Electric Territory Easement Survey Contract – Rivers Associates.

2. Fingerprinting Fee / New Digital Fingerprint Machine – Police Department.

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS)
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW)
 2018 Sewer Rehabilitation Project (TW)
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW)
 Cemetery Expansion Project (BW)

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Martin Luther King Day Holiday: Monday, January 20, 2020, Town Offices Closed.

2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 @ 7:00 pm in THAR.

3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 @ 7:00 pm (immediately following
the Planning and Zoning Board Meeting, if needed) in THAR.

4. Town Council Vision Setting Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2020 @ 5:30 pm in the
Winterville Train Depot.

5. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, January 28, 2020 @ 6:30 pm in the Operations Center
Conference Room.

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
HONORING DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY 

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. was a great moral leader who espoused 
peace and the brotherhood of man; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. King advanced the cause of the attainment of social changes for 
all people and the establishment of "The Beloved Community" worldwide; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. admonished us to have faith, wisdom, and 
conviction that racial harmony can be achieved and left us a blueprint for harmonious 
relationships, let us, therefore, embrace his principles of love, peace and non-violence as 
well as freedom and justice for all; and 

WHEREAS, the Congress and the President of the United States have established 
by law a national holiday to observe the anniversary of Dr. King's birth; and 

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has established the third Monday in January 
as a legal holiday in honor of his birth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville 
hereby proclaim January 20, 2020, as "DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY" throughout 
the Town of Winterville. I urge all citizens to avail themselves of the splendid opportunity 
to remember and celebrate the life of Dr. King, whose struggle for civil rights and noble 
pursuit of equality for all Americans deserve our heartfelt appreciation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 13th day of January, 2020. 

 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

3



 

 

 

PROCLAMATION 
Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Month 

 

WHEREAS, human trafficking involves the recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, 
buying or selling of human beings for their services of labor or commercial sex through the use of 
force, fraud or coercion; and 

WHEREAS, human trafficking violates basic human rights and deprives victims of human 
dignity and freedom. Victims are dehumanized and forced into modern-day slavery; and 

WHEREAS, human trafficking is a growing global and national problem, with North Carolina 
being consistently ranked among the top ten states for prevalence in human trafficking; and 

WHEREAS, it is imperative that we educate our communities, our young people, and 
families to take an active interest in learning how to recognize the risks and resist predators who 
use coercion and threats to manipulate children as young as 12 into labor or sex trafficking; and 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the need for that education, the NC General Assembly 
enacted legislation mandating that sex trafficking prevention and awareness information be 
included in the sexual health education curriculum; and 

WHEREAS, the NC General Assembly enacted legislation in 2019 mandating that sex 
trafficking training be provided to all public school personnel; and 

WHEREAS, the Pitt County Coalition Against Human Trafficking seeks to eradicate human 
trafficking by empowering organizations and individuals through collaboration, leadership, and 
training; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville is committed to protecting people vulnerable to human 
trafficking and taking action to end human trafficking through prevention, prosecution, and 
partnerships. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I, do hereby proclaim January 2020 as “Human Trafficking 
Awareness and Prevention Month”, and commend its observance to all citizens and set my hand, 
and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 13th day of January, 2020. 

 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 

 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Presentations 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Michael Jordan, CPA, Carr, Riggs and Ingram, LLC. and Anthony 
Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Presentation of the 2018-2019 Audit Report. 

Action Requested: None. 

Attachment: Presentation will be provided once we have it from CRI. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 1/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Mr. Michael Jordan will be here to present the 2018-2019 audit findings. Mr. Jordan is a partner with Carr, 

Riggs and Ingram LLC. Mr. Jordan is representing CRI from the Goldsboro office. We will provide the 

Council with the CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) once printing has been completed. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

5



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Hold a Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Annexation Ordinance, Notice of 
Publication, Notice to Adjacent Property Owners. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 12/23/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of a portion of Parcel 25766 (Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2) is applying for annexation 

into the Town limits. 

 

Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2: 

Location: Laurie Ellis Road west of its intersection with Old Tar Road. 

Size: 12.535 Acres. 

Zoned: R-10 CUD. 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (11/12/19). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (12/9/19). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (1/13/20). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

6



7



8



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE 
ANNEXED INTO THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

BROOKFIELD, SECTION 4, PHASE 2 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

OCTOBER 17, 2019 
 
 

Beginning at a point on the northern right-of-way o NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), said 
point being the southeastern corner of the Town of Winterville Property as described in 
Deed Book 2803, Page 192 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  From the above 
described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
Leaving the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), N 07°52'51" E 
197.59’, thence S 87°05'39" E 1,088.91’, thence N 09°55'25" E 128.00’, thence  
S 51°49'02" E 182.02’, thence S 34°40'07" W 26.83’, thence S 55°19'53" E 60.00’, thence 
S 47°54'15" E 134.55’, thence S 42°05'45" W 186.80’, thence S 32°12'47" E 246.81’ to a 
point on the southern right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), thence with the 
southern right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), S 81°21'39" W 56.34’,  
S 84°19'25" W 51.53’, S 87°18'38" W 51.55’, N 89°45'12" W 51.50’, N 86°51'11" W 51.56’, 
N 83°37'20" W 51.68’, N 80°21'59" W 51.62’, N 77°27'14" W 51.09’, N 76°03'57" W 50.54’ 
and N 75°12'04" W 998.80’, thence crossing the right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis 
Road), N 07°52'51" E 60.46’ to the point of beginning containing 12.535 acres and being a 
portion of the property described in Deed Book 3573, Page 522 of the Pitt County Register 
of Deeds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\ANNEXATION\Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 - 16-150.docx 

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville 

Annexation Ordinance 

 

Ordinance No: 20-O- 011 

Property Annexed: Cooper Island Development, LLC – Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 

Ordinance Adopted: January 13, 2020 

Effective Date: January 31, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mail to: 

 

Town of Winterville 

Attn: Planning Department 

2571 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

10



Ordinance No. 20-O-011 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Cooper Island Development, LLC – Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the 

area described below; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has, by resolution, directed the Town Clerk to investigate 

the sufficiency of the petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public 

hearing on the question of annexation was held at the Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 pm on 

January 13, 2020 after due notice was given by publication on December 31, 2019 and January 

8, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 160A-31; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 

North Carolina that: 

 

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described 

territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Winterville as of January 31, 2020: 

 

Cooper Island Development, LLC – Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 

Lying and being situated in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the northern right-of-way o NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), said point 

being the southeastern corner of the Town of Winterville Property as described in Deed Book 

2803, Page 192 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  From the above described beginning, so 

located, running thence as follows: 

 

Leaving the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), N 07°52'51" E 197.59’, 

thence S 87°05'39" E 1,088.91’, thence N 09°55'25" E 128.00’, thence  

S 51°49'02" E 182.02’, thence S 34°40'07" W 26.83’, thence S 55°19'53" E 60.00’, thence S 

47°54'15" E 134.55’, thence S 42°05'45" W 186.80’, thence S 32°12'47" E 246.81’ to a point on 

the southern right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), thence with the southern right-of-

way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), S 81°21'39" W 56.34’,  

S 84°19'25" W 51.53’, S 87°18'38" W 51.55’, N 89°45'12" W 51.50’, N 86°51'11" W 51.56’, N 

83°37'20" W 51.68’, N 80°21'59" W 51.62’, N 77°27'14" W 51.09’, N 76°03'57" W 50.54’ and N 

75°12'04" W 998.80’, thence crossing the right-of-way of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road), N 

07°52'51" E 60.46’ to the point of beginning containing 12.535 acres and being a portion of the 

property described in Deed Book 3573, Page 522 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. 

11



 

Section 2. Upon and after September 30, 2019, the above-described territory and its 

citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in 

the Town of Winterville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of 

the Town of Winterville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to NCGS 

160A-58.10. 

 

Section 3. The Mayor of the Town of Winterville shall cause to be recorded in the Office 

of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in Raleigh, 

North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, 

together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such map shall also be delivered to the 

County Board of Elections, as required by NCGS 163-288.1. 

 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of January, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
  

12



North Carolina 

 

Pitt County 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted 

by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, at a meeting held on January 

13, 2020 at 7 o’clock pm at the Town Hall in the Town of Winterville. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and have caused the official 

corporate seal of the Town of Winterville to be affixed, this ____ day of ______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 

 

North Carolina  

 

Pitt County 

 

I, Kristin L. Godley, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

certification, for the purpose therein expressed. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of ____________, 20__. 

 

 

 

   

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires:   

13



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, January 
13, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public 
Hearing on the following proposal: 
 
The Town of Winterville has received an annexation petition from Cooper Island Development, 
LLC for Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2. 
 
Persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to speak either for or against the 
annexation are invited to be present and will be given the opportunity to be heard at the Town 
Council Public Hearing. For further information, contact the Winterville Planning Department at 
(252) 215-2360. 
 
  
 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisement 
legals@apgenc.com  
(252) 329-9505 
 
Subject: Annexation Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 Public Hearing 
 
Please place the above as a legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Tuesday, 
December 31, 2019 and Wednesday, January 8, 2020. Should you have any questions 
please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459, Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 / don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  

14

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


  

WILL KUHN HOMES 
4226 DUNHAGAN ROAD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858      

 
 
RUBEN E SOTO TERRON 
406 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
      

PATRICIA JACKSON 
408 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
   

  

ANN F BORISOFF 
414 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

CECIL L JACKSON 
422 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

GWINN HILDA GREY MCVEY 
430 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

PAUL WRIGHT 
436 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

DAVID BOYD MOORE 
444 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

PETER RICHARDSON 
450 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

SAMUEL H HERRING 
456 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

JEFFERY ALAN THOMAS 
462 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

ALVIN R WALSTON, JR 
464 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

ANUJ AGGARWAL 
465 CASTLEFORD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

ELEANOR BRODRICK 
707 BROOKFIELD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

BRITTANY STEWART 
701 BROOKFIELD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

   

  

CHARLES COPELAND 
695 BROOKFIELD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

SUE RUSSELL 
689 BROOKFIELD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

CORY S PIERSON 
683 BROOKFIELD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

   

  

 
CHAPEL HILL FOUNDATION 
REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS 
300 SOUTH BUILDING CN1000 
CHAPEL HILL, NC 27599 

 
     

PEDRO BALERAS TURST 
1036 MADISON AVE 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92116 

      

 
DAWN BRANCH KING 
ETAL 
3904 COLONY WOODS DRIVE 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

 
  

  

HILDA STOKES MCGLOHON 
920 WAINRIGHT LN 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

      

LORRAINE R RUCKER 
4433 NORRIS STORE RD 
AYDEN, NC 28513 

         

                 

                 

 

15



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meeting listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 12/23/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 December 9, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

16



 

Page 1 of 33 

 
 

Winterville Town Council 
December 9, 2019 – 7:00 PM 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
INSTALLATION AND OATH OF OFFICE OF NEWLY ELECTED TOWN OFFICIALS: 
 
  

17



 

Page 2 of 33 

Councilman-Elect, Ricky Hines: Honorable Don Davis, Senator swore in Ricky Hines as Councilman 
as he repeated the Oath of Office. 
 

 
  

18



 

Page 3 of 33 

Councilman-Elect, Tony Moore: Honorable Daniel Entzminger, Judge swore in Tony Moore as 
Councilman as he repeated the Oath of Office. 
 

 
  

19



 

Page 4 of 33 

Councilwoman-Elect, Veronica Roberson: Honorable Cheryl T. Jordan, Chief Magistrate swore in 
Veronica Roberson as Councilwoman as she repeated the Oath of Office. 
 

 
  

20



 

Page 5 of 33 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to take a short break. 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Mayor Jackson called the meeting back to order. 
 
APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO-TEM: 
 
Councilman Moore nominated Mayor Pro Tem Smith. Council Moye nominated Councilwoman 
Roberson. Vote taken, Councilman Moore and Mayor Pro Tem Smith voted for Mayor Pro Tem 
Smith (2) and Councilman Moye, Councilman Hines, Councilwoman Roberson voted for 
Councilwoman Roberson (3). Councilwoman Roberson appointed Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
E & S Homes – Rezoning Request - Planning Director Jones gave the request with the following 
presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

21



 

Page 6 of 33 

 
 

 
 

 

22



 

Page 7 of 33 

 
 

 
 

 

23



 

Page 8 of 33 

 
 

 
 

 

24



 

Page 9 of 33 

 
 

 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open and asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
annexation request. 
 
Brandon Smith, applicant, spoke noting they plan to repurpose the building for use as an office for his 
construction company. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the rezoning request. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
rezoning request from E & S Homes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

25



 

Page 10 of 33 

 
 

26



 

Page 11 of 33 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
Dr. Glenn Johnson presented information on a Planning Development Project. 
 
  

27



 

Page 12 of 33 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 
1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 November 12, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Approval of 2020 Calendars: 

 2020 Regular Council Meeting Calendar; and 
 FY 2020 - 2021 Budget Calendar. 

3. Schedule Public Hearing for the Annexation of Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 on Monday, January 
13, 2020. 

4. Budget Amendment: 2019-2020-3. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
consent agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Nobel Canal Bank Stabilization – NCDENR DWR Grant Application – Authorizing Resolution: Assistant 
Town Manager Williams gave a presentation on the Application. 
 

28



 

Page 13 of 33 

 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
authorizing Resolution 19-R-121. The motion carried unanimously, 3-2. Councilman Moore and 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith opposed. 

29



 

Page 14 of 33 

 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation – SRF Offer and Acceptance Resolution: Assistant Town Manager 
Williams gave a presentation on the acceptance resolution. 
 

 
 

30



 

Page 15 of 33 

Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the offer 
and acceptance Resolution 19-R-122. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Pedro Balderas Trust – Final Plat: Planning Director Jones gave a presentation on the Final Plat. 
 

 
 

 
 

31



 

Page 16 of 33 

 
 

 
 

 

32



 

Page 17 of 33 

 

 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the 
Pedro Balderas Trust – Final Plat. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Training Session: Planning Director Jones gave a choice of dates for a Training 
Session. 
 
Council discussed best date for training. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to hold the 
training session on February 6, 2020, 9 am – 12 noon. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
District 1A Electric Territory Expansion Design and Engineering Contract: Electric Director Sutton gave 
a presentation on the design and engineering contract for the electric territory expansion. 
 

33



 

Page 18 of 33 

 
 

34



 

Page 19 of 33 

 
 

35



 

Page 20 of 33 

 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the Pike 
Engineering contract for the electric territory expansion. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

36



 

Page 21 of 33 

2020 Street Improvements Project Engineering Contract: Public Works Director Welborn gave a 
presentation on the engineering contract for the 2020 street improvements project. 
 

 
 

37



 

Page 22 of 33 

 
 

38



 

Page 23 of 33 

 
 

39



 

Page 24 of 33 

 
 

40



 

Page 25 of 33 

 
 

41



 

Page 26 of 33 

 
 

42



 

Page 27 of 33 

 
 

43



 

Page 28 of 33 

 
 

 

44



 

Page 29 of 33 

 

 
 

45



 

Page 30 of 33 

 
 

46



 

Page 31 of 33 

 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 

47



 

Page 32 of 33 

Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
contract with ARK Consulting Group for engineering services for the 2020 Street Improvements 
Project. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Council Moye asked staff to look into parking of large vehicles in residential areas that hinder vision. 
Town Manager Parker noted that staff is aware of the situation and others around Town. Staff will look 
into possible traffic hazards and areas that warrant investigation. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
Staff gave updates on projects currently underway: 
 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 
 Cemetery (BW) 

 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston reported on the Spring 2020 Cal Ripken Baseball Registration 
and the Daddy Daughter Dance on Friday, February 14, 2020. 
 
Councilman Moore asked about the Town Cemetery. Town Manager Parker noted the staff would look 
at the budget. Councilman Moore asked if there are any spaces available. Finance Director Bowers said 
most are resales at this time. Town Manager Parker noted there is a need for additional spaces. 
 
Councilman Hines asked about the potholes at the dumpster site behind the Cemetery. Public Works 
Director Welborn noted that the County was to fix the potholes, he will check on the status. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: No report and there is no closed session tonight; He wished all a Merry Christmas. 
 
Councilman Moore: Noted he was sorry about the weather for the parade, He wished all a Merry 
Christmas. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Enjoyed what she could of the Christmas Parade and thanks to citizens for 
her reelection. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Smith: He wished all a Merry Christmas. 
 
Councilman Moye: Enjoying the decorations and the Christmas festivities even with rain. He wished all 
a Merry Christmas. 
 

48



 

Page 33 of 33 

Councilman Hines: Thanks to citizens for reelection and Merry Christmas to all. 
 
Mayor Jackson: Congratulations to those sworn in tonight. Wish everyone a Merry Christmas. 
 
Manager Parker: Congratulations to those reelected. Thanks to staff and an honor to have worked in 
local government for the past 30 years, 10 years in Winterville. Thanks to Mayor Pro Tem Smith and 
missed Mayor Jackson during his illness. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 
 
1. Cops on the Roof: Friday, December 13th at Walmart, 210 Greenville Blvd SW, Greenville. 

2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, December 16th @ 7:00 pm in the THAR. 

3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, December 17th @ 7:00 pm in the THAR. 

4. Shop with a Cop: Saturday, December 21st. 

5. Christmas Holidays: Tuesday, December 24th, Wednesday, December 25th, and Thursday, 
December 26th, Town Offices Closed. 

6. New Year’s Day: Wednesday, January 1, 2020, Town Offices Closed. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn. 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:05 pm. 
 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of January, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

49



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Release and Refund of Taxes. 

Action Requested: Approve the Release and Refund of the Taxes. 

Attachment: Listing of owners due release and refunds. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 1/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

In general, tax refunds do not have a budgetary impact on the Town due to the fact that payments have been 

received twice for the same property. The total refunds are in the amount of $23,675.14 and the total amount 

of releases are $1,702.42 

 

The Town Council has approved a resolution authorizing the Finance Officer to be able to approve the 

request for releases and refunds in amounts less than $100.00 dollars. 

 

Please see the attached information as submitted by the Tax Collector. 

Budgetary Impact: None, as we will not amend the budget due to this small amount of releases. 

Recommendation: Approve the release and refunds. 

 

50



Real Property Tax Refunds

Name Year Parcel Date Amount Reason

CARRAWAY, LUTHER EDWARD 2019 31384 10/10/2019 33.46           Overpayment

CARRAWAY, LUTHER EDWARD 2019 57132 10/10/2019 12.97           Overpayment

DOCKERY, ANTHONY 2019 63295 10/10/2019 640.29         Overpayment

HUFFMAN, LENORA B 2019 31287 10/23/2019 187.35         Overpayment

FORBES, DORIS 2019 35328 12/6/2019 342.63         Overpayment

WILLIAMS, RONALD L 2019 43888 12/6/2019 521.69         Overpayment

HENDRICKSON, JARED A & CINDY 2019 80859 12/6/2019 400.00         Overpayment

WADE, RACHEL B 2019 68146 12/6/2019 639.73         Overpayment

CAINE, CIARA G 2019 31948 12/6/2019 365.59         Overpayment

THOMPSON, DONALD A 2019 65599 11/22/2019 1,567.88      Overpayment

BINEGAR, SHELLEY M. 2019 69934 12/6/2019 439.75         Overpayment

BROCK, GARY J 2019 83616 12/6/2019 1,201.62      Overpayment

KELLO, BERNADETTE 2019 10795 12/6/2019 416.79         Overpayment

MILLS, SAMMY 2019 79211 12/9/2019 943.74         Overpayment

MULLIS, JEFFREY 2019 54597 12/9/2019 828.44         Overpayment

SIEMENS, JOHN 2019 68236 12/9/2019 725.06         Overpayment

TRAN, TRANG 2019 68626 12/9/2019 726.16         Overpayment

FLORES, OCTAVIO 2019 26554 12/9/2019 366.38         Overpayment

ANDERSON, LISA 2019 65977 12/9/2019 460.53         Overpayment

FLOWERS, JOHNATHAN 2019 66787 12/9/2019 451.47         Overpayment

BANSON, SHELIA 2019 68453 12/9/2019 895.73         Overpayment

BOTTOMS, DENNIS 2019 68618 12/9/2019 213.75         Overpayment

VERNON, JERIMIAH 2019 80119 12/9/2019 870.91         Overpayment

BORISOFF, ANN 2019 84239 12/9/2019 137.75         Overpayment

FEEGLE, KAREN 2019 4781 12/9/2019 366.13         Overpayment

REYNOLDS, DARRYL V 2019 68264 12/9/2019 861.12         Overpayment

WILL KUHN HOMES 2019 84243 12/9/2019 137.75         Overpayment

KUHN, JO 2019 68145 12/9/2019 588.61         Overpayment

HICKMAN, MICHELLE 2019 68447 12/9/2019 818.65         Overpayment

LIVERMAN, H. ELLIS 2019 26545 12/9/2019 329.07         Overpayment

BECK, ROBERT P 2019 82988 12/9/2019 898.37         Overpayment

EDMONSON, DON H 2019 61607 12/9/2019 495.11         Overpayment

EDMONSON, DON H 2019 62714 12/9/2019 534.98         Overpayment

GREENFIELD, VLADIMIR 2019 74306 12/9/2019 100.00         Overpayment

SOUTHERN DEVELOPMENT 2019 74310 12/9/2019 1,012.61      Overpayment

COX, DONNIE BERNARD 2019 82974 12/9/2019 831.54         Overpayment

JONES, JEREMY 2019 66794 12/9/2019 451.47         Overpayment

DAVIS, GLORIA 2019 63300 12/9/2019 730.80         Overpayment

GRIFFIN, MARK 2019 66628 12/9/2019 818.67         Overpayment

PERKOVICH, PAUL F 2019 82968 12/9/2019 1,116.52      Overpayment

BELL, PATRICIA JOYCE 2019 79163 12/18/2019 194.07         Overpayment

Total 23,675.14    

Town of Winterville

Tax Refunds and Releases

12/30/2019

Page 1 of 2

51



Real Property Releases

Name Year Parcel Date Released Reason

TSENG, TE CHING 2019 55197 8/13/2019 271.55         Corrected Assess Value

COOPER ISLAND DEVELOPMENT LLC 2019 84251 8/15/2019 213.75         Land use value change

BOTTOMS, DENNIS 2019 68618 10/23/2019 267.07         Veteran Exemption

YELVERTON, ANTHONY E 2019 55163 10/23/2019 260.40         Veteran Exemption

HUFFMAN, LENORA B 2019 31287 10/23/2019 321.28         Tax Relief Exemption

Total 1,334.05      

Personal Property Releases

Name Year Account Date Released Reason

FORREST, TIMOTHY GENE 2019 1067950 8/14/2019 2.38              Outside City Limits

EAST CAROLINA COMPUTER SERVICE 2019 1046551 8/16/2019 47.88           Outside City Limits

BRYTONS LLC 2019 1031835 9/10/2019 318.11         Business Closed

Total 368.37         

Total Refunds 40 $23,675.14

Total Releases 8 $1,702.42

The Release (G.S. 105-381 or 382), Corrections (G.S. 105-325), or Refunds (G.S. 105-381 or 382) of tax bills outlined 

above are approved by The Town of Winterville Council.

Date ApprovedDouglas Jackson, Mayor

January 13, 2020

Page 2 of 2

52



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2019-2020-4. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 19-20-4. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 1/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the fourth budget amendment for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses three items. 

The first item addresses the need to carry over a Purchase Order for the contract approved with the GFOA. 

The GFOA is the consultant assisting the Town with the RFP process that will allow us to select a new 

software vendor. 

The second item address funds needed to cover the losses of a totaled police vehicle. The insurance 

company covered $14,918 of the value of a new vehicle. In order to replace the vehicle we needed to 

increase the budget for the additional funds to make the purchase. The Town had to provide an additional 

$10,000 that was approved last month. 

The third item address the payment of water debt for the work completed on the water tower, and other 

water infrastructure in Town. This is the first debt service payment due to the NCDEQ. It was pushed back 

from last fiscal year to this year as a result of needing to complete all the necessary paper work. This will put 

the Town making two payments in one fiscal year. Funds that were budgeted for last fiscal year were not 

spent and were converted to Fund Balance as of June 30th. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $78,379. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

53



SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Fund Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General Fund 29,700$        

Misc. Revenue 10 3820 General Fund 14,918$        

Fund Balance Contribution 61 3831 Water Fund 33,761$        

Total 78,379$        -$               

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Department Fund Increase Decrease

Contracted Services 1041412001 4233 Finance General 29,700$        

Capital Outlay 1043431000 7150 Police General 14,918$        

Debt Service 6172721000 5132 Water 27,383$        

Interest Exp. 6172721000 5133 Water 6,378$          

Total 78,379$        -$               

Adopted the 13th day of January 2020.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2019-2020-4

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the annual 

budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020:

54



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Audit Contract amendment for fiscal year 2018 – 2019. 

Action Requested: Approve the audit contract amendment with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

Attachment: Contract Amendment. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 1/10/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/10/2020 ☒ TM: 1/10/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/10/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Each year the Town Council must approve the contract with the audit firm that it uses for its independent 

review of the Town’s Finances. The Town Council approved the original contract at the May 14th regularly 

scheduled meeting. The amendment addresses one item. It extends the due date of the contract from 

October 31st 2019, to January 31st 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approve the contract amendment. 

 

55



56



57



58



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Robert Sutton, Electric Utilities Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: New Electric Territory Professional Services Agreement for Easement Mapping and Surveying. 

Action Requested: Approval of Professional Services Agreement with Rivers and Associates, Inc. 

Attachment: Professional Services Agreement and maps of parcels requiring utility easements. 

Prepared By: Robert Sutton, Electric Utility Director Date: 12/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town’s electric territory, through an agreement with Greenville Utilities Commission, has expanded into 

areas that will require the installation of new electric infrastructure. The installation of backbone electric 

infrastructure into these areas requires the acquisition of utility easements. Obtaining these easements will 

require NCDOT to reimburse the Town for relocation of its utilities should road expansion/widening projects 

affect the areas. 

Mapping and surveying of fourteen (14) individual Easement Acquisition Maps for recordation with the 

easement agreements in District 1A (Worthington Road to Laurie Ellis Road corridor) of the new electric 

service territory is required. Staff has discussed the required scope of work with representatives of Rivers 

and Associates and determined the firm possesses the required knowledge, skills and staffing to perform the 

work promptly and effectively. 

 

Budgetary Impact: The FYE 20 Budget obligated sufficient funding for the needed mapping and surveying. 

Recommendation: Approval of Professional Services Agreement with Rivers and Associates, Inc. 

 

59



60



61



62



63



64



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 13, 2020 

Presenter: Lt. Chris Williams, Police Department 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Fingerprinting Fee / New Digital Fingerprint Machine. 

Action Requested: Council consideration to increase the fee for fingerprints to $15.00. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 1/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/7/2020 ☒ TM: 1/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Police Department, via a Grant, has obtained a digital live scan fingerprint machine that is very similar to 

what is used at the Pitt County Detention Center as well as other agencies across the County. With this new 

technology, we will have maintenance on the machine as well as the printer and ink cartridge expenses. 

Although the service agreement is free for the first year, under warranty, this service agreement will cost 

$2,100.00 per year moving forward annually. Additionally, other agencies using this technology charge 

$15.00 for prints. Our fee of $10.00 has been in place for over 20 years. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval of request. 

 

65


	20200113_Agenda-Amended
	6-1-a-Proclamation-MLK 200113
	6-2-a-Proclamation_Human_Trafficking_200113
	7-1-a-Presentation_Abstract_Auditv2
	8-1-a-PH_Abstract_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_2_Annexv2
	8-1-b-Annex_Petition_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_2
	8-1-c-Annex_Map_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase 2
	8-1-d-Legal_Description_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_2
	8-1-e-Ordinance_20-O-011_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_2_Annex
	8-1-f-Reflector_Notice_PH_Brookfield_Annex
	8-1-g-Adjacent_Address_Notification_Brookfield_Section_4_Phase_2
	10-1-a-Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	10-1-b-Regular Meeting Minutes 12092019
	10-2-a-Consent_Abstract_Tax Release and Refundv2
	10-2-b-Tax_Refunds_and_Releases_January_2020
	10-3-a-Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amend_19-20-4v2
	10-3-b-Budget Amendment 2019-2020-4
	10-4-a-Consent_Abstract_Audit Contractv2
	10-4-b-Audit contract - amendment
	12-1-a-New_Abstract_Electric_Survey_Agreementv4
	12-1-b-Winterville_Rivers_District 1A_Electric_Easement_Agreement
	12-2-a-New_Abstract_Fingerprinting _Feev2



